
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silent 
prayer observed. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe and Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Mike                        
                                         Martin, Scott Martin 
  

Members Absent:  Trustee Jean Hall Currie 

                                     

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Lonnie Scott, Township Resident and Chair for Park Commission, expressed his 
thanks to the Board for taking up and passing on 1st reading the smoking and 
tobacco ban in all Township Parks. 
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident would like more discussion on the snow removal. 
She stated that she was against the smoking ban in parks and she felt that we 
should not take that freedom away from individuals who smoke. 
 
Linda Mealing, Township Resident stated she was against the ban on smoking in 
the parks. She said she understands the health factor but feels by having this ban 
on smoking it would deter some of our people from using our parks. Ms. Mealing 
said she would suggest having a designated area for smoking in the park. She also 
said she wondered how it would be enforced, and added that the Township 
doesn’t have a total ban of smoking on township property at the Civic Center. 
 
Debbie Swanson, Park Commissioner, agrees with Lonnie Scott and she said that 
banning smoking from parks was about the well-being of our community. She said 
that the park commission felt that the park system was part of having a healthy 
community. Ms. Swanson feels that by implementing smoke free parks it would 
help the amount of children in our community with asthma. Ms. Swanson thanks 
the board and stated she hoped they would pass it on the 2nd reading. 
 
Jo Ann McCollum, Township Resident supports the smoking ban in the parks. She 
said that this ban was one more way to support healthy living. 
 
Monica Ross-Williams, Park Commissioner, supports the smoking ban.  She said 
the park commission studied this issue nearly five years before they brought this 
to the board.  Ms. Ross-Williams said she was a former smoker who quit after the 
loss of 3 loved ones to cancer. She said parks are for recreation and about a 
healthy lifestyle. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

Donald Shipley, Township Resident does not agree with the smoking ban. He said 
he would support a designated area for smokers or feels it should be banned on 
all township property. Mr. Shipley asked if the board was going to vote on snow 
removal tonight.  Supervisor Stumbo stated they did not get to that item at the 
work session and it was suggested to table it until the next board meeting. 
 
Angela Verges, Recreation Director stated the Recreation Department received a 
Grant from the Michigan Recreation and Park Association to do park 
improvements. She stated they have done improvements to Appleridge Park and 
she thanked the board and the township attorney for helping them in utilizing the 
funds which helped add park benches and signage along the trail at Appleridge 
Park. 
 
Roy Townsend, Managing Director of Washtenaw County Road Commission 
discussed road funding which was on the ballot for November. He said two years 
ago the county board put on PA2283 which was a 1 year, ½ mil tax to raise money 
for roads. He stated the roads that were done in the Township two years ago 
were Martz Rd., a section of Munger Rd, a section of Golfside Rd., a section of 
Superior Rd., and a section of New Meadow. Mr. Townsend said that this year 
they did a section of Textile Rd., a section of Grove Rd., and a section of Prospect 
Rd.  He stated that what they would be proposing this year was a 4 year millage. 
He said they have a list of the projects but some of the major projects would be 
North Harris Rd. making a street with curbs, bike lanes, sidewalks, new 
underground drains all the way from Michigan Ave. to Holmes Rd also a section 
Textile Rd., a section S. Harris Rd., Bunton Rd., Munger Rd., Congress Rd., Clark 
Rd., and Ford Blvd. He said it was ½ mil and it would cost the average property 
owner about $35.00 a year. Mr. Townsend stated this millage would include 200 
miles of roads in the county and about 20% would be set aside for non-motorized 
projects. He said the trails border to border program would go through Ypsilanti 
Township. He stated this millage would be on November 8, 2016 election. 
 
Linda Mealing, Township Resident stated on behalf of West Willow they 
appreciate the townships support by coming to the meeting with MDOT and for 
the support the board had always had for the neighborhood watch group.   
 
Dennis Dickinson, Township Resident supports the ban on smoking in township 
parks. Mr. Dickinson said he came for the snow removal ordinance and found out 
that it was being tabled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 16, 2016 SPECIAL MEETING, WORK SESSION 
AND REGULAR MEETING  

 
B. MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 

MEETING 
 

C. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR OCTOBER 4, 2016 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $690,198.69 

 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee S. Martin 
to approve the consent agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters explained the progress with sale of the property for the 
Autonomous Vehicle Research Center. He said the closing for the sale of the 
property from Racer Trust was scheduled for November 4, 2016. Attorney 
Winters said the Township must approve a development agreement but it has not 
been delivered to his office. He said he was told it he would receive it by October 
6, 2016.  Attorney Winters said the approval of the development agreement must 
be done before the closing on November 4, 2016.  He stated that the Township 
would be asked to create a Renaissance tax free zone for the 332 acre property. 
Attorney Winters said there were only a few Renaissance zoned designations 
remaining in the state and the Board would request this property be considered 
to receive it. Attorney Winters said they have a resolution and other documents 
that would be delivered to the board members this week. He said the Washtenaw 
County Board of Commissioners have been requested to approve this at their 
board meeting on October 19, 2016.  He said the County must be the one to make 
the application for the designation because under Michigan law the Township was 
not an eligible distressed community and so by default the applicant must be 
Washtenaw County. Attorney Winters stated there were other issues such as the 
lowering of the Tyler Dam and the creation of a Special Assessment District. He 
said the board would have to determine what type of agreement they would have 
with WRAD for a payment in lieu of taxes. Attorney Winters said that it would be 
called a Municipal Services Agreement because they would be a nontaxable entity 
and the Township would negotiate what would be an appropriate financial 
agreement to offset the loss of tax revenue. Attorney Winters stressed that there 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
 

were other locations being considered for this Research Center but Ypsilanti 
Township continues to be one of them. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the Renaissance zone was new for the township. 
She said they have not dealt with this before. Supervisor Stumbo stated 
redeveloping this site was a great opportunity for the township. Supervisor 
Stumbo stated that the board would make sure within the Agreement the 
Township and its’ residents would be protected.  She said the Agreement would 
include that they would be required to pay for Police and Fire and the debt for the 
school millages.  Supervisor Stumbo said she appreciated all the entities that have 
helped with this project and believes that this project would carry us into the 
future.  
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR, FOR 
AUTHORIZATION OF THE ADOPT A STOP MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE ANN ARBOR AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY FOR A 
PASSENGER SHELTER AT BUS STOP #2499 LOCATED AT THE CIVIC 
CENTER (1ST READING HELD AT THE JULY 19, 2016 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
remove this from tabled. 
 
S. Eldridge:             Yes            S. Martin:            Yes           Stumbo:       Yes    
Lovejoy Roe:          Yes             Doe:                     Yes          M. Martin:    Yes 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve Request of Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director, for Authorization of 
the Adopt A Stop Maintenance Agreement with the Ann Arbor Area 
Transportation Authority for a Passenger Shelter at Bus Stop #2499 Located at 
the Civic Center (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #13 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
support Budget Amendment #13 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
 

2. 1st READING OF RESOLUTION 2016-51, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2016-
470 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 48 ENTITLED PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE TO ADD A PROVISION REGARDING SNOW REMOVAL 
FROM SIDEWALKS AND SNOW EMERGENCIES            

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee S. Martin to be 
tabled until next board meeting. 
 
Eldridge:                Yes              S. Martin:             Yes          Stumbo:       Yes    
Lovejoy Roe:         Yes              Doe:                       Yes          M. Martin:   No 
 

3. RESOLUTION 2016-52, AMENDED RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION 
PROGRAM FEE SCHEDULE 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Resolution 2016-52, Amended Rental Housing Inspection Program Fee 
Schedule (see attached). 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director explained the fee schedule which now includes rental 
apartments, manufactured housing for both owner occupied and rentals. Mr. 
Radzik stated there were 67 apartment complexes in the township, 675 individual 
buildings within the apartment complexes and 6890 individual units within the 
apartment complexes. He said that they assume approximately 75% of the 
existing manufactured homes are rentals and there are about 1280 manufactured 
housing sites approved by the State of Michigan in the 7 parks in Ypsilanti 
Township.  Mr. Radzik explained each fee for the different dwellings. Supervisor 
Stumbo stated that its’ a great program and thanked Mr. Radzik for putting it 
together. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, DIRECTOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS FOR THE AUTHORIZATION TO ADD ONE ADDITIONAL 
FLOATER II/CLERK III POSITION TO THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS FUNDED IN THE AMOUNT OF $19,790.00 IN THE 
HOUSING AND BUSINESS INSPECTION BUDGET (248) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, Director Office of Community Standards for 
the Authorization to Add One Additional Floater II/Clerk III Position to the Office 
of Community Standards Funded in the Amount of $19, 790.00 in the Housing 
and Business Inspection Budget (248). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 

5. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF FOR AUTHORIZATION OF THE 
ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT (AFG) PROGRAM 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND FOR THE YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT TO BE A PARTICIPATING PARTNER 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee S. Martin to 
Approve Request of Eric Copeland, Fire Chief for Authorization of the Assistance 
to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Program Memorandum of Understanding and for the 
Ypsilanti Township Fire Department to be a Participating Partner (see attached) 
 
Eric Copeland, Fire Chief explained the grant program memorandum of 
understanding. He said it involves Pittsfield Township purchasing a new ladder 
truck which would be part of the working agreement automatic aid. Automatic 
Aid is an agreement which would allow Pittsfield to respond in Ypsilanti Township 
when needed. Chief Copeland stated that there would not be a cost to the 
Township but Township Firefighters would need to be trained on using the truck. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. REQUEST TO MAIL A SURVEY FOR NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERAS TO THE 
RESIDENTS OF THE ROSEWIND SUBDIVISION  

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee M. Martin to 
Approve Request to Mail a Survey for Neighborhood Cameras to the Residents 
of the Rosewind Subdivision. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained the survey was used to receive feedback from 
residents on whether they would like cameras in the Rosewind Subdivision. She 
said they would use solar panels to operate the cameras. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Steve Gray, Township Resident introduced himself and explained that he was a 
candidate running for school board for the Ypsilanti Community Schools. Mr. Gray 
stated he has lived on the east side of the county for 25 years. He said he served 
along with Trustee M. Martin on the Washtenaw Democratic Executive Board. 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if there were 2 vacancies on the school board. Mr. Gray 
stated there were 2 vacancies and 4 candidates seeking the positions and two 
were incumbents. 
 
Monica Ross-Williams, Township Resident stated that when GM was in the 
township they had given West Willow Grant money for various opportunities 
within West Willow. She said she would like the board to remember that when 
seeking financial compensation with the redevelopment of the former GM 
property.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Adjourn. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 
 

 

ADOPT-A-STOP MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 

The Ann Arbor Area Transportation Authority (hereinafter,“ The Ride”) 2700 S.Industrial 

Hwy, Ann Arbor, MI 48104 and  Ypsilanti Charter Township    hereinafter, “SPONSOR”), 

located at              7200 S.Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti , MI 48197      in consideration of the 

mutual promises contained herein agrees as follows this 7th   day of July 2016. 

   

AMENITIES 

The Ride agrees to install a passenger shelter with a bench at bus stop #2499 located at 

Ypsilanti Charter Township Civic Center. 

          

 

MAINTENANCE 

 

 The SPONSOR agrees to empty the trash receptacle weekly and clear snow as needed at 

the bus stop and surrounding pedestrian facilities during winter snow events on weekdays 

during normal business hours of the Ypsilanti Charter Township Civic Center. No winter 

maintenance will be performed on weekends at this location. 

The Ride agrees to clean the bus shelter glass every 6 weeks in keeping with this 

agreement. 

 

The Ride will repair the passenger shelter and bench in the event they become damaged. 

The Ride agrees to install trash receptacles at the bus stop to be maintained by the sponsor 

if requested. The sponsor may choose to provide their own receptacle at any time. 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2016 BUDGET AMENDMENT #13

October 4 , 2016

248 - HOUSING & BUSINESS INSPECTION FUND Total Increase $19,790.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 248-000-000-699.000 $19,790.00

Net Revenues $19,790.00

Expenditures: Salary - Permanent Wages 248-248-000-706.000 $10,220.00

FICA 248-248-000-715.000 $780.00

Health Insurance 248-248-000-719.000 $4,659.00

Sick & Accident 248-248-000-719.001 $100.00

Dental Benefits 248-248-000-719.015 $397.00

Vision Benefits 248-248-000-719.016 $58.00

Health Care Deduction 248-248-000-719.020 $1,425.00

Admin Fee -  Health Deductible 248-248-000-719.021 $21.00

Life Insurance 248-248-000-720-000 $50.00

MERS 248-248-000-876.000 $2,080.00

Net Expenditures $19,790.00

Request to increase the budget for an additional clerical person for the Housing & Business Inspection Fund.  Anticipated 

start date October 17, 2016. Wages and benefits were calculated assuming the position would be filled internally with 

family coverage, therefore there would be no delay in the benefits .  The  numbers will be lower if a new person is hired due 

to the probation period.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2016 Budget (#13): 

 

 

 

Move to increase the Housing & Business Inspection Fund budget by $19,790 to 

$250,007 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-52 

 

AMENDED RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION PROGRAM FEE 
SCHEDULE 

 
Whereas, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti adopted Ordinance No. 2016-464 
expanding the rental inspection requirement to include multi-family residential units that 
are subject to rental agreements, which became effective on September 29, 2016; and 
 
Whereas, the rental inspection ordinance provides that the fees to be charged in the 
administration of the ordinance shall be established by a resolution of the Township 
Board; and 
 
Whereas, the fee schedule is being established to offset the Township’s cost of 
registration, inspection and recordkeeping.  
 
Now Therefore, Be it resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby adopts 
the following inspection fee schedule effective on October 13, 2016 as follows: 

 
SINGLE FAMILY & DUPLEX RENTAL INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Registration for One and Two Unit Dwellings (one-time fee) 

 Single Family, Duplex, Manufactured Home (per unit) ............... $   10 
Failure to Register Penalty Fee ............................................................. $ 100 
Initial/Renewal Inspection (24-month cycle) .......................................... $ 100 
Re-Inspections as Necessary ................................................................ $   30 
No Show/No Access for Scheduled Inspection................................ Inspection Fee 
Late Cancellation for Initial Inspection (< 4 business days’ notice) ........ $   50 
Late Cancellation for Re-Inspection (< 4 business days’ notice)  ........   $   30 
Tenant Complaint Inspection   ...........................................................  No Charge 
Search Warrant Fee   ..........................................................................   $ 100 
Appeal to Construction Board of Appeal  .............................................   $ 150 

 
MULTI-FAMILY RENTAL INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Registration for Multi-Family Dwellings (one-time fee) 

 Building with 3-8 Units ................................................................ $   50 

 Building with 9 or More Units ...................................................... $   75 

 High Rise Building per floor ........................................................ $   50 
Exterior Inspection per Building ............................................................. $   50 
Common Area Inspection 

 Stairways/Hallways ..................................................................... $   20 

 Laundry Area .............................................................................. $   20 

 Storage Area ............................................................................... $   20  

 Mechanical Room ....................................................................... $   20 

 High Rise Rooftop ....................................................................... $   20 
Interior Inspection per Unit .................................................................... $   40 
Re-Inspections as Necessary ................................................................ $   30 
No Show/No Access for Scheduled Inspection.............................. Inspection Fee 
Late Cancellation for Initial Inspection (< 4 business days’ notice) ........ $   50 
Late Cancellation for Re-Inspection (< 4 business days’ notice ............ $   30 
Tenant Complaint Inspection .............................................................. No Charge 
Search Warrant Fee .............................................................................. $ 100 
Appeal to Construction Board of Appeal ................................................ $ 150 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2016-52 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on October 4, 2016. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 






























